
REGULAR MEETING 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

Plainfield Community School Corporation 
September 13, 2018 

7:00 p.m. 
 

AGENDA 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A.  Pledge of Allegiance 

 
II. PRESIDENT’S PREROGATIVE AND CORRESPONDENCE 

 
A. Welcome Guests 

 
B. Geo Foundation Scholarship Presentation – Donnie Emerson 

 
C. Recognize Value of the Month Nominees 

 
III. PATRON’S INPUT ON AGENDA ITEMS 

 
IV. REPORTS 

 
A. 2018 Summer Lunch Feeding Program 

 
V. CONSENT ITEMS 

 
A. Record of the August 9, 2018, Budget Work Session 

 
B. Minutes of the August 9, 2018, Regular Meeting 

 
C. Field Trip/Camps/Tutoring 

 
D. Donations 

 
E. Obsolete Equipment 
 

VI. FINANCIAL REPORT AND CLAIMS 
 
A. Claims: 48175-48537 – Mr. Wolfe 

 
Suspend Regular Meeting 
 
Conduct Budget Hearing 
 

2019 Budget, 2019 Capital Projects Plan, 2019-2023 Bus Replacement Plan – 
Mr. Wolfe 

 
Page 1 of 2 

 



Conduct Hearing on Proposed 2019 Projects 
 
  
Resume Regular Meeting 

 
VII. NEW BUSINESS 

 
A. Personnel – Mr. Olinger 

 
B. 2019-2020 Transfer Policy – Mr. Olinger 

 
C. Adopt 2019 Capital Projects Plan – Mr. Wolfe 

 
D. Adopt 2019-2023 Bus Replacement Plan – Mr. Wolfe 

 
E. Adopt Resolution to Establish Education Fund and Operations Fund – Mr. 

Wolfe 
 

F. Approve Medicaid Service Agreement – Mr. Wolfe 
 

G. Approve Contractor Agreements – Mr. Wolfe 
 

H. Approve Use of Van Buren ECA Funds – Mr. Wolfe 
 

I. Approve Use of Clarks Creek ECA Funds – Mr. Wolfe 
 

J. Adopt Project Resolution – Mr. Wolfe 
 

K. Adopt Preliminary Bond Resolution – Mr. Wolfe 
 

L. Adopt Resolution to Reimburse for Expenditures – Mr. Wolfe 
 

VIII. OLD BUSINESS 
 
A. Approve Change Order #1 for Clarks Creek Fire Alarm Project – Mr. Wolfe 

 
B. Approve Professional Services Agreement – Middle School Renovations – 

Mr. Wolfe 
 

IX. BOARD POLICIES 
 

A. First Reading of Board Policy I-21:  Student Activity/Fundraisers Funds 
Management 
 

B. Second Reading of Board Policy D-26:  Debt Management 
 
 

X. BOARD DISCUSSION 
 

 
 

Page 2 of 2 



2016 June – lunch served 19 

days 

July – lunch 

served 15 days 

Total 

Brentwood 836 397 1233 

Library 1574 1202 2776 
    

2017 June- lunch served 20 

days 

July – lunch 

served 13 days 

Total 

Gladden Farms 997 469 1466 

Library 2030 1189 3219 

    

2018 June- lunch served 20 

days 

July – lunch 

served 14 days 

Total 

Gladden Farms 872 672 1544 

Library 2423 1325 3748 
 



Plainfield Community School Corporation 
985 Longfellow Lane 
Plainfield, IN  46168 

317-839-2578 

 
 
 

 
RECORD OF WORK SESSION 

Board of School Trustees 
Plainfield Community School Corporation 

 
 

August 9, 2018 
5:30 p.m. 

 
 
A work session was held on August 9, 2018, in accordance with the law. The purpose of 
the work session was to discuss the 2019 budget. 
 
The following members of the Board of School Trustees were in attendance: 
 

Mr. Allen, Mr. Blackwell, Mrs. Chamness, Mrs. Elston, Mr. Flood 
 
The undersigned Board members who were present and participating in said executive 
session do hereby certify that they discussed no subject matter in the session other than 
permitted in accordance with law. 
 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned. 
 
 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
         Jessica Elston, President       Scott Flood, First Vice President 
 
 
 
______________________________  _______________________________ 
Katie Chamness, Second Vice President       Michael Allen, Secretary 
 
 
 
    ________________________________ 
       Barry Blackwell, Parliamentarian 



BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
Plainfield Community School Corporation 

August 9, 2018 

A regular meeting of the Board of School Trustees of the Plainfield Community School 
Corporation, Hendricks County, Indiana, was held in the Board Room of the 
Administration Building at 985 Longfellow Lane on August 9, 2018, at 7:00 p.m. 

Members of the Board of School Trustees Michael Allen, Barry Blackwell, Katie 
Chamness, Jessica Elston, and Scott Flood were present.  Also in attendance were the 
administrative staff.  There were 11 guests present.  When President Elston provided the 
opportunity, no one from the audience provided input regarding the agenda items.  We 
all stood and recited the Pledge of Allegiance. 

PRESIDENT’S President Elston opened the meeting and welcomed those 
PROROGATIVE in attendance.  

She thanked everyone for a great start to our school year. 

REPORTS Mr. Olinger presented the 2018-2019 goals and strategies 
to the Board.  These strategies were developed by the 
administrative team.  An update will occur in December. 

Mr. Olinger provided the Board with an individual school 
evaluation report for the 2017-2018 school year. 

RECORD OF WORK 
SESSION ON JULY 12, 

2018 

On a motion by Scott Flood and seconded by Michael 
Allen, the Record of the Work Session on July 12, 2018, 
was approved. 

MINUTES MINUTES OF JULY 12, On a motion by Scott Flood and seconded by Michael 
MEETING Allen, the minutes of the July 12, 2018, Regular Meeting 

were approved.

RECORD OF WORK 
SESSION ON JULY 17, 
2018 

On a motion by Scott Flood and seconded by Michael 
Allen, the Record of the Work Session on July 17, 2018, 
was approved.

MINUTES MINUTES OF JULY 17 On a motion by Scott Flood and seconded by Michael 
2018 MEETING Allen, the minutes of the July 12, 2018, Special Meeting 

were approved.

FIELD TRIPS & CAMPS Scott Flood made a motion and seconded by Michael Allen 
for Board approval of the field trips and camps. 

DONATIONS  On a motion by Scott Flood and seconded by Michael 
Allen, the Board accepted the donations. 

Page 1 of 3 



OBSOLETE  On a motion by Scott Flood and seconded by Michael 
EQUIPMENT  Allen, the Board approved the list of obsolete equipment. 

FEDERAL GRANTS On a motion by Scott Flood and seconded by Michael 
Allen, the Board approved the Title 1 Grant in the amount 
of $315,732.41, the Title 2 Grant in the amount of 
$78,592.23, Title 3 Grant in the amount of $12,972.00, the 
NESP Grant in the amount of $25,800.00, and the Title IV 
grant in the amount of $21,904.47. 

FINANCIAL REPORT Mr. Wolfe presented the financial reports for the month of 
AND CLAIMS  August and claims 47868-48174.  Katie Chamness made 

the motion, Barry Blackwell seconded and the Board 
approved payment of claims: 47868-48174. 

PERSONNEL On a motion by Scott Flood and seconded by Katie 
Chamness, the Board approved the personnel 
recommendations as per Schedule A-1. 

PERMISSION TO On a motion by Michael Allen and seconded by Barry 
PUBLISH 2019 Blackwell, the Board gave approval for the 2019 budget to 
BUDGET be advertised in the Hendricks County Flyer and the 

Hendricks County Republican and the Gateway Portal. 

APPROVE TRANSFER On a motion by Scott Flood and seconded by Katie 
OF ECA FUNDS FOR  Chamness, the Board approved the transfer of ECA funds 
ELEMENTARY for the elementary walkathon.  Each school will receive 
WALKATHON $4,192.00 

APPROVE USE OF On a motion by Barry Blackwell and seconded by Michael 
CENTRAL ECA  Allen, the Board approved the use of Central Elementary  
FUNDS  ECA funds to purchase computers. 

CHANGE ORDER FOR Scott Flood made a motion, Michael Allen seconded 
PHS ROOFING and the Board approved the Change Order #1 for the PHS 
PROJECT Roofing Project with Blackmore & Buckner in the amount 

of $40,594.50  

CHANGE ORDER FOR Michael Allen made a motion, Katie Chamness seconded 
CENTRAL ELEMENTARY and the Board approved the Change Order #1 for Central  
RENOVATION PROJECT Elementary Renovation Project with JM Rowland 

Construction, LLC in the amount of ($13,720.00).  

SCHOOL BOARD Board Policy D-26:  Debt Management was presented for 
POLICIES first reading. 

Page 2 of 3 



Board Policies G-26:  Criminal History Information – 
Applicants and Contractors, G-50:  Criminal History 
Checks – School Employees, J-26:  Student Discipline 
Rules, J-32:  Administration of Medication at School, and 
J-51: Suicide Awareness and Prevention were presented 
for the second reading. Michael Allen made a motion, 
Scott Flood seconded and the Board approved the 
changes to the policy with the modification recommended 
by Michael Allen. 

BOARD DISCUSSION Mr. Olinger reminded the Board of the Kindergarten/New 
Parent Community Forum on Thursday, August 16th, at 
6:00 p.m. in the auditorium at the high school. 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned. 

_____________________________ ______________________________ 
  Jessica Elston, President   Scott Flood, First Vice President 

_____________________________     ______________________________ 
Katie Chamness, Second Vice President     Michael Allen, Secretary  

  ___________________________ 
  Barry Blackwell, Parliamentarian 

Page 3 of 3 



Program/Activity

Group/Grade 

Level Dates Time Sponsor

Contact

Number Location Fee

Projected

Participants

After School Tutoring
1

Sept. 14, 2018 - May 

31, 2018 4pm - 5pm Angela Ash 317-839-8165 Van Buren N/A 5

After School Tutoring
5 & 6

Sept. 14, 2018 - May 

31, 2018 4pm - 5pm Megan Brouillard 317-839-2575 Van Buren $30/hour 2

Before School Tutoring
K-5

Sept. 14, 2018 - May 

31, 2018 7:45am - 8:45am Jennifer Gray 317-839-4802 Brentwood $30/hour TBD

After School Tutoring
2-5

Sept. 14, 2018 - May 

31, 2018 4pm - 5pm Anne Johnson 317-839-7707 Central N/A 1-2

After School Tutoring
K-1

Sept. 14, 2018 - May 

31, 2018 4pm - 5pm Jennifer Johnson 317-946-0986 Clarks Creek $25/hour 2

After School Tutoring
K-3

Sept. 14, 2018 - May 

31, 2018 4:14pm - 5pm Lynn Jones 317-410-1696 Brentwood $20/hour 5

Before & After School Tutoring
K-5

Sept. 14, 2018 - May 

31, 2018 TBD Brittany Love 317-446-3036 Clarks Creek N/A TBD

After School Tutoring
3

Sept. 14, 2018 - May 

31, 2018 4pm - 5pm & 5pm - 6pm Jessica Markowitz 317-839-0120 Clarks Creek $25/hour 3

Before & After School Tutoring
6-8

Oct. 1, 2018 - May 31, 

2018

7am - 7:50am or 3pm - 

4pm Charles Mennonno 317-838-3966 PCMS $30/hour 1-2

After School Tutoring
5-7

Sept. 14, 2018 - May 

31, 2018 4:10pm - 5:00pm Brian Nelson 317-910-1889 Clarks Creek $35/hour 1

After School Tutoring
3

Sept. 14, 2018 - May 

31, 2018 4pm - 5pm Jackie Richter 317-385-9057 Clarks Creek $25/hour 3

Before & After School Tutoring
K-5

Sept. 14, 2018 - May 

31, 2018 TBD Ana Romo 317-839-0120 Clarks Creek $25/hour 1-3

After School Tutoring
K-5

Sept. 14, 2018 - May 

31, 2018 4pm - 4:45pm Kara Silver 317-839-0120 Clarks Creek $25/hour 1-2

Before & After School Tutoring
6-8

Sept. 14, 2018 - May 

31, 2018

7am - 7:50am or 3pm - 

4pm Laurie Stark 317-838-3966 PCMS $20/hour TBD

After School Tutoring
K-5

Sept. 14, 2018 - May 

31, 2018 4pm - 6pm Liz Stringer 317-374-6669 Clarks Creek $25/hour 4

After School Tutoring 4
Sept. 14, 2018 - May 

31, 2018 4pm - 5pm Sarah Tobey 317-839-7707 Central $25/hour 4

2018-2019 Academic Tutoring/Private Lessons



Activity

Group/Grade 

Level Dates Time Sponsor(s)

Contact

Number Location Fee

Projected

Participants

Flat Rock River YMCA Camp 5 9/20/18 - 9/21/18

Depart 9:15am 9/20/18 - 

Return 2pm 9/21/18 Jill Love 317-839-2575

Flat Rock - St. 

Paul, IN N/A 112

Activity

Group/Grade 

Level Dates Time Sponsor(s)

Contact

Number Location Fee

Projected

Participants

Elementary Wrestling Camp K-5

Oct. 28, 2018 - Nov. 8, 

2018 6pm - 7pm Brian Smiley 317-213-2365

PHS Wrestling 

Room $50/Participant 30-50

Activity

Group/Grade 

Level Dates Time Sponsor(s)

Contact

Number Location Fee

Projected

Participants

Brentwood Art Club K-8

Tuesdays in October 

2018 - April 2019 3:45pm - 4:35pm 

Cherri Rutan & Jean 

Overpeck 812-239-2721 Brentwood $3/Student 20/Grade

Robotics STEAM 3-5

Tuesday mornings from 

Oct. 2, 2018 - Mar. 5, 

2019 7:35am - 8:30am Rachel Landis 317-496-3451 Brentwood N/A 25

Brentwood Choir 4-5

Tuesday mornings from 

9/18 - end of May 2019 7:45am - 8:30am Tara Sherman 317-839-4802 Brentwood $10 For shirt only 30

Van Buren K-Kids 4-5

Sept. 2018 - May 2019 - 

2 times per month 7:55am - 8:30am

Melissa Bennett & Diana 

Lautenschlager 317-902-3637 Van Buren

$2/Renewing or 

$10/new 30

Reading Club 3 Sept. 2018 - May 2019  3:55pm - 4:30pm Mike Fritch & Stacy Davis 317-839-4802 Brentwood N/A 4

2018-2019 Athletic Clinics and Summer Camps

2018-2019 Clubs

2018-2019 Overnight and Out-of-State Field Trips



 
Donations 

September 13, 2018 
 

Plainfield Community School Corporation 
 

1. Gear Up Cyclery donated four specialized bikes to the corporation, a value of $2,000. 
 

Plainfield High School 
 

1. Edward Gunnell donated $350 to the Dance Team. 
 

2. National Federation of State High School Associations donated $500 to Athletics. 
 

3. CarDon donate4d $125 to the Boys Soccer Team. 
 

4. FWD Holdings donated $650 to the Dance Team. 
 

5. Bada Bing Donuts donated $300 to the Football Team. 
 

6. SSA Food Services Donated $300 to the Football Team. 
 

7. Red Pride Booster Club donated $10,000 to Athletics. 
 

8. Plainfield Choral Boosters donated $270 to Choir. 
 

9. Men’s Warehouse donated $470 to Prom. 
 
Plainfield Community Middle School 
 

1. PCMS PTO donated $1,000 to the IdeaLab in honor of Pat Cooney. 
 

2. Peter Karam donated $50 to the Robotics fund. 
 

3. Glen and Kuehn Accounting P.C. donated $300 to the Robotics fund. 
 

4. Michael and Sabrina Karam donated $100 to the Robotics fund. 
 

5. Mr. Care Auto donated $100 to the Robotics fund. 
 
Brentwood Elementary 
 

1. Hanke Photograph donated a box of plaster of paris and approximately 30 frame 
samples to the art department.  

 
Clarks Creek Elementary 
 

1. Plainfield Frigid Frog donated $84 to the Student Activities fund. 
 

2. Clarks Creek PTO donated $1000 to the Robotics fund. 
 



















Page Voucher No. Vendor Amount Description

6 48320 CSO Architects 55,000.00         Professional fees for middle school renovations

12 48407 Indiana Sign & Barricade 5,656.00           Street signage on Shaw Street, marking one-way north for Van Buren project

14 48467 PCSC 150,000.00       Unrestricted indirect costs transferred from Food Service Fund to General Fund.  

19 48288 PCSC 168,618.29       Transfer of funds from Food Services "Prepaid Fund" to Food Services Fund to account for

earned income.

Additional Information on Claims Docket

September 13, 2018













































hbender
Rectangle

























































 

 

Plainfield Community School Corporation 

985 Longfellow Lane 

Plainfield, IN  46168 

317-839-2578 

 

 

 

 

IMPORTANT POLICY CHANGE:  NON-RESIDENT TRANSFER STUDENTS 

 

 
 

For the 2019-2020 school year, Plainfield Community School Corporation: 

 

 Will continue to accept transfer applications from currently enrolled transfer students. 

 Will accept new transfer applications from other non-resident students per the 

schedule below: 

 

Grade K – Unlimited new students 

Grade 6 – Unlimited new students 

Grade 9 – Unlimited new students 

 

These updated policy guidelines will allow the district to maintain reasonable class sizes 

and continue to provide the best education for all Plainfield students.  

 

Enrollment for non-resident students for the 2019-2020 school year, meeting the above 

criteria, will begin March 1, 2019, and go through May 1, 2019. 







































 
I\13433247.1 

EXHIBIT A 

PROJECT RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS, the Board of School Trustees (the "Board") of Plainfield Community School 

Corporation (the "School Corporation") at a meeting on September 13, 2018, held a public hearing 

in accordance with Indiana Code § 20-26-7-37 for the purpose of answering questions and 

listening to taxpayers' comments and any evidence they may present about the proposed renovation 

of and improvements to school facilities, including equipment, buses, vehicles, technology and 

athletic and site improvements and the acquisition of real estate (the "Project"), and; 

WHEREAS, the Board has carefully studied all of the known options and feel that the 

proposed Project is in the best interest of the present and future students to be served by these 

facilities as well as the taxpayers of the School Corporation; now therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Project is necessary for the purpose of providing an improved 

educational program and environment for students. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the estimated hard and soft construction cost of the 

Project is $2,682,500 and the cost of issuance paid from bond proceeds is expected to be $92,500 

resulting in a total estimated Project cost of $2,775,000. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the estimated $2,775,000 will be funded by Capital 

Projects Fund and a General Obligation Bond issue with an anticipated impact on the Debt Service 

Fund Tax Rate of $0.0190 per $100 assessed valuation based on the current $2,121,969,824 

assessed valuation beginning 2019.  However, as existing debt matures, the anticipated net impact 

on the Debt Service Fund Tax Rate is expected to be $0.00. 



 
I\13433247.1 

Passed and Adopted this 13th day of September, 2018. 

 

 

  

President, Board of School Trustees 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

  

Secretary, Board of School Trustees 



 
I\13433247.1 

EXHIBIT B 

PRELIMINARY BOND RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS, Plainfield Community School Corporation (the "Issuer" or "School 

Corporation") is a school corporation organized and existing under the provisions of Indiana 

Code § 20-23; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of School Trustees (the "Board") finds that the present facilities of 

the School Corporation are not adequate to provide the proper educational environment of the 

students now attending or who will attend its schools; and 

WHEREAS, the Board finds that there are not sufficient funds available or provided for in 

existing tax levies with which to pay the cost of the renovation of and improvements to school 

facilities, including equipment, buses, vehicles, technology and athletic and site improvements and 

the acquisition of real estate (the "Project"), and that the School Corporation should issue bonds 

in an amount not to exceed Two Million Seven Hundred Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars 

($2,775,000) (the "Bonds") for the purpose of providing funds to be applied on the Project, and 

that Bonds in such maximum amount should now be authorized; now, therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of the Issuer that, for the purpose of obtaining funds to 

be applied on the cost of the Project, there shall be issued and sold the Bonds of the School 

Corporation to be designated as "General Obligation Bonds of 2018."  The Bonds shall be in a 

principal amount not to exceed Two Million Seven Hundred Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars 

($2,775,000), bearing interest at a rate or rates not exceeding six percent (6.00%) per annum (the 

exact rate or rates to be determined by bidding), which interest shall be payable on January 15 and 

July 15 in each year beginning July 15, 2019.  The Bonds shall be fully registered in the 

denomination of Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000) or integral multiples thereof (or other 

denominations as requested by the winning bidder), and shall mature serially or be subject to 

mandatory redemption on January 15 and July 15 beginning July 15, 2019 through no later than 

January 15, 2027.  The Bonds shall be redeemable on the dates and in the amounts as determined 

by the Issuer. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that prior to the sale of the Bonds at public sale, notice of 

such sale shall be published once each week for two (2) weeks in The Hendricks County Flyer, 

The Republican and in the Court & Commercial Record, the first of said publications to be at least 

fifteen (15) days prior to the date fixed for the sale of said bonds and the last at least three (3) days 

prior.  At the time fixed for the opening of bids, the Board or its designated committee shall meet, 

all bids shall be opened in the presence of the Board or such committee, and the award shall be 

made by the Board or such committee. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Board of the Issuer that the matter of appropriating 

the proceeds of the Bonds authorized at this meeting be taken up for consideration as soon as notice 

of the hearing on the appropriation can be given as provided by law, and that the Secretary of the 

Board be and he hereby is directed to give notice of the public hearing to be held prior to the final 

action on such appropriation, which notice shall be published  in The Hendricks County Flyer and 

The Republican at least ten (10) days prior to the date set for such public hearing. 



 
I\13433247.1 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Secretary of the Board be and hereby is directed 

to give notice of the determination to issue the Bonds, which notice shall be published twice, one 

week apart, in The Hendricks County Flyer and The Republican; also, that the notice of 

determination shall be posted in three (3) public places in the School Corporation. 

Passed and Adopted this 13th day of September, 2018. 

 

  

President, Board of School Trustees 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

  

Secretary, Board of School Trustees 



 

 
I\13433247.1 

EXHIBIT C 

DECLARATION OF OFFICIAL INTENT TO REIMBURSE EXPENDITURES 

WHEREAS, Plainfield Community School Corporation (the "School Corporation") 

intends to finance the renovation of and improvements to school facilities, including equipment, 

buses, vehicles, technology and athletic and site improvements and the acquisition of real estate 

(the "Project"); and 

WHEREAS, the School Corporation reasonably expects to reimburse certain costs of the 

Project with proceeds of obligations to be incurred by or on behalf of the School Corporation in 

an amount not to exceed $2,775,000; and 

WHEREAS, the School Corporation expects to issue obligations for the Project and to use 

the proceeds to reimburse or pay costs of the Project;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the School Corporation declares its official 

intent to fund the Project with proceeds of obligations incurred by the School Corporation in an 

amount not to exceed $2,775,000. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the School Corporation reasonably expects to 

reimburse itself from proceeds of obligations issued by the School Corporation for costs of the 

Project paid prior to the issuance of the Bonds. 

Passed and Adopted this 13th day of September, 2018. 

 

 

  

President, Board of School Trustees 

 

 

  

Secretary, Board of School Trustees 

 



mfarmer
Typewritten Text
Mark W Farmer

mfarmer
Typewritten Text
08-23-2018













































































I-21 STUDENT ACTIVITY/FUNDRAISERS FUNDS MANAGEMENT 

 
All activity funds are to be handled through the principal's office by a School Board 
of School Trustees appointed and bonded treasurer, subject to the direction of the 
building principal and superintendent or his or her designee. The treasurer's bond is to 
be paid by the school corporation. 

 
The treasurer shall have the charge of the custody and disbursement of any funds 
collected by a collecting authority and expended to pay expenses: (1) approved by the 
principal or teacher in charge of the activity, and (2) incurred in conducting any athletic, 
social, or other school function (other than functions conducted solely by any 
organization of parents and teachers). The State Board of Accounts is of the audit 
position that all funds raised from activities involving students must be accounted for in 
the Extracurricular Account. This is not to say that material (order forms) sent home with 
a student and returned to the school is “activities involving students.” 

 

All fundraising activities associated with athletic, social, or other school functions shall 
be pre-approved by the extracurricular treasurer, principal, and corporation treasurer. 
While the Board of School Trustees recognizes they are the governing body to 
approve fundraisers, the Board has delegated this responsibility to the corporation 
treasurer.  The corporation treasurer shall prescribe the approval form and procedures. 

 
All purchases and expenses chargeable to activity funds are to be approved by the 
principal. Activity fund requisitions and purchase orders are to be used as specified by 
the State Board of Accounts. Teachers are not to pay bills and expect activity fund 
checks to be written to them without prior approval of the principal. 

 
An annual report of activity fund receipts and expenditures shall be submitted to the 
superintendent and Board of School Trustees in July August of each year. 

 
All fundraising activities sponsored by parent groups such as PTO’s and Booster Clubs 
are not considered school sponsored groups. Fund raising activities by these types of 
groups may not be organized in conjunction with a school corporation employee or 
student. These types of groups are solely responsible for the collection and accounting 
of all revenue and receipts. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SOURCE: Plainfield Community School Corporation 
Plainfield, IN 

ADOPTED:   Prior to 08/10/66 
REVISED:    08/01/72, 03/22/90, 04/13/06, 4/09/09 



 
D-26: DEBT MANAGEMENT 

 

The School Corporation hereby recognizes that a fiscally prudent debt policy is required in order to:  
  

• Maintain the School Corporation’s sound financial position and maintain the tax rate.   

 Ensure the School Corporation has the flexibility to respond to changes in future service priorities, 
revenue levels, and operating expenses.    

• Protect the School Corporation’s credit rating.    
• Ensure that all debt is structured in order to protect both current and future taxpayers, and the 

School Corporation’s Operations Fund, from poorly structured or overly costly capital financings.   
• Ensure that the School Corporation’s debt is consistent with the School Corporation’s planning 

goals and objectives, facilities planning documentation and/or budget, as applicable, and the 10-
year capital plan.   

 

Debt Policies   
 
Long-term debt may be issued to finance the construction, acquisition, and rehabilitation of capital 
improvements and facilities, equipment and land to be owned and operated by the School Corporation.    
Long-term debt financings are appropriate when the following conditions exist:   
  

• When the project to be financed is necessary to provide services which the School Corporation is 
authorized to provide.   

• When the project to be financed will provide benefit to constituents over multiple years.     
• When total debt does not constitute an unreasonable burden to the School Corporation and its 

taxpayers.    
• When the debt is used to refinance outstanding debt in order to produce debt service savings or 

to realize the benefits of a debt restructuring. 
 
Long-term debt financings will not be considered appropriate for current operating expenses and routine 
maintenance expenses.  
    
The School Corporation may use long-term debt financings subject to the following conditions:   
 

• The project to be financed must be approved by the Board.   
• The weighted average maturity of the debt (or the portion of the debt allocated to the project) will 

not exceed the average useful life of the project to be financed.  
• The School Corporation estimates that the identified source of repayment, whether property taxes 

or other identified source, will be available to service the debt through its maturity.    
• The School Corporation determines that the issuance of the debt will comply with applicable state 

and federal laws and is needed.   
 
Short-term debt may be issued to provide financing for the School Corporation’s operational cash flows in 
order to maintain a steady and even cash flow balance.  Short-term debt may also be used to finance 
short-lived capital projects; for example, the School Corporation may undertake general obligation 
financing for equipment.  
  
The following types of debt are allowable under this Debt Policy:   
 

• General obligation bonds   
• Bond or grant anticipation notes   
• Lease revenue bonds, certificates of participation and lease-purchase transactions   
•  Other revenue bonds and certificates of participation   
•  Tax and revenue anticipation notes   

 



The School Corporation may, from time to time, find that other forms of debt could be beneficial to further 
its public purposes and may approve such debt without an amendment of this Debt Policy, as a result of 
capital market changes. 
 
Debt shall be issued as fixed rate debt unless the School Corporation makes a specific determination as 
to why a variable rate issue would be beneficial to the School Corporation in a specific circumstance.   
 

Relationship of Debt to Capital Improvement Program and Budget   
 
The School Corporation is committed to long-term capital planning. The School Corporation intends to 
issue debt for the purposes stated in this Debt Policy and to implement policy decisions incorporated in 
the School Corporation’s capital budget and master facilities plan.   
  
The School Corporation shall integrate its debt issuances with the goals of its capital improvement or 
master facilities plan by timing the issuance of debt to ensure that projects are available when needed in 
furtherance of the School Corporation’s public purposes. 
   
The School Corporation shall seek to issue debt in a timely manner to avoid having to make unplanned 
expenditures for capital improvements or equipment from its general fund.   
 

Policy Goals Related to Planning Goals and Objectives   
 
The School Corporation is committed to long-term financial planning, maintaining appropriate reserves 
levels and employing prudent practices in governance, management and budget administration. The 
School Corporation intends to issue debt for the purposes stated in this Policy and to implement policy 
decisions incorporated in the School Corporation’s annual operations budget. 
    
It is a policy goal of the School Corporation to protect taxpayers and constituents by utilizing conservative 
financing methods and techniques so as to obtain the highest practical credit ratings (if applicable) and the 
lowest practical borrowing costs.  
  
The School Corporation will comply with applicable state and federal law as it pertains to the maximum 
term of debt and the procedures for levying and imposing any related taxes, fees and charges, as 
applicable, and in the case of refinancing of existing debt, achieving savings as may be required by law or 
achieving other objectives of substantial benefit to the School Corporation.    

 

Internal Control Procedures   
 
Compliance with Debt Policy.  The School Corporation’s business official is responsible for implementing 
and monitoring compliance with this Debt Policy.   
 
Compliance with SEC Rule 15c2-12.  The School Corporation may have undertaken, and may undertake 
in the future, obligations for continuing disclosure pursuant to SEC Rule 15c2-12.  The School 
Corporation’s business official will periodically review the requirements of Rule 15c2-12 and each of the 
School Corporation’s undertakings, and ensure that annual and other periodic filings which may be 
required are done in a complete and timely manner.  It shall be the policy of the School Corporation to 
engage a third party dissemination agent to assist the School Corporation to make complete and timely 
filings and ensure compliance for the benefit of bondholders or other investors in School Corporation debt. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Compliance with Federal Tax Laws.  The School Corporation shall have a policy of full compliance with all 
applicable federal tax law requirements.  In connection with prior and new debt issues, the School 
Corporation’s business official shall review applicable federal tax requirements, including requirements 
relating to arbitrage and rebate compliance.  In connection with each debt issue the School Corporation 
shall contract with a rebate consultant to undertake arbitrage calculations, if such debt is not otherwise 
exempt from rebate. 
 
Investments.  Proceeds of debt issued by the School Corporation shall be invested in accordance with 
applicable law or as otherwise permitted in the resolution or other document governing the issuance of the 
debt.   
 
Expenditure of Proceeds of Debt.  Written requisitions identifying the amount and purpose of a proposed 
draw of bond or other debt proceeds shall be signed by a School Corporation official and submitted to the 
appropriate School Corporation officials or bond trustee, as applicable.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LEGAL REFERENCE: SEC 15c2-12 
 
SOURCE: Plainfield Community School Corporation 
  Plainfield, IN 
NOTE:  See Accounting Manual for Indiana Public School Corporation 
ADOPTED:  


	9-13-18 Agenda
	Summer Lunch summary
	Record of Work Session 8-9-18
	8-9-18 minutes
	2018-2019 Camps-Clubs-Tutoring-Overnights
	Donations 9-13-18
	Obsolete Equipment
	Financial Report
	Board Docket Detail
	September Claims
	ECA Reports
	Personnel 9-13-18
	ECA Lists
	Transfer Policy Change for 2019-2020
	Cap Projects-Bus Rep-Ed Fund
	Go Solutions Group
	Contractor Agreement - Temporary
	Contractor Agreement
	Van Buren ECA Funds
	Memorandum 2018
	Resolutions
	Shoemaker Executed 16067 - Change Order REV1 - Final
	Professional Services Agreement
	I-21
	D-26



